
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
ROWAN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FEBRUARY 3, 2003 – 9:00 AM 
J. NEWTON COHEN, SR. ROOM, ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

 
Present:  Steve Blount, Chairman 

Gus Andrews, Vice-Chairman  
Leda Belk, Member 

Chad Mitchell, Member 
Frank Tadlock, Member 

 
The Clerk to the Board, Finance Director and County Attorney were also present. 
 
Chairman Blount convened the meeting at 9:00 am. 
 
Commissioner Mitchell provided the Invocation and Commissioner Belk led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 
 
ADDITIONS:  
 

• Chairman Blount added a Closed Session to discuss an Economic Development 
Issue. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE: 
 
The Commission packets included a memo concerning the following: 

1) Memo on Schools Tour and Appointment of a Commissioner 
to the Site Selection Committee 

2) Acknowledgements from Senior Services 
3) Emails from Chairman Blount 

 
LIAISON REPORTS:   
 
Commissioner Belk informed the Board that the moratorium on residential facilities has 
provided the DSS Board with time to ask necessary questions concerning these facilities. 
 

 1



Commissioner Tadlock informed the Board that as the liaison for the Sheriff’s 
Department, he had met with Sheriff Wilhelm and scheduled monthly meetings for the 
remainder of the year. 
 
CONSIDERATION OF CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Andrews and passed unanimously.  
 
The Consent Agenda consisted of the following items: 

A. Approval of request from NCDOT for Mill Creek Circle to be added to the 
State Secondary Road System for maintenance 

B. Approval to set a public hearing for Z-01-03, a request to rezone RA to 
NB 

C. Approval to set a public hearing for Z-02-03, a request to rezone RR to 
NB 

D. Approval to set a public hearing for CUP-02-03, a request for the 
establishment in the CBI district 

E. Approval of a School Construction Capital Projects Ordinance and 
Reimbursement Resolution 

F. Approval of request to increase uncompensated care line item in Maternal 
Health Budget 

G. Approval of Budget Amendments 
 
RECOGNITION OF EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH FOR FEBRUARY: 
 
Chairman Blount recognized Judy Crews of the Senior Services Department, as 
Employee of Month for February.  Department Director Clyde Fahnestock was present 
and praised Ms. Crews and described the various job duties she performs.  Mr. 
Fahnestock stated that Ms. Crews was selected on a unanimous decision of the employees 
at Senior Services. 
 
Chairman Blount said the Personnel Board was surprised to have received a unanimous 
nomination by the employees of Senior Services.  Chairman Blount presented Ms. Crews 
with a certificate, which was followed by a round of applause. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR ROAD CLOSINGS: 
 
Don Conner, Director of Environmental Services, described the three (3) handouts 
distributed pertaining to the road closing. The handouts were an order of closing (Exhibit 
A) and an affidavit from the attorney declaring that the legal requirements had been met. 
 
Mr. Conner described the road as a “small section of road that has never been opened.”  
Mr. Conner stated that the applicants own the property on both sides of the road and 
reported that the County has no problem with the road being closed.  
 

 2



Chairman Blount opened the public hearing to entertain citizen comment concerning the 
closing of property recorded at the office of the Register of Deeds for Rowan County on 
Book of Maps 9995, Page 855, and designated as “The W.B. Hartley Estate.” 
 
Attorney Earl Koontz, addressed the Board stating that he was assisting Gary Basinger 
and Debbie Barnhardt to ensure that all statutory requirements were met concerning the 
road closing.  Mr. Koontz requested that the Board allow the road closing to proceed. 
 
With no further citizen input, Chairman Blount closed the public hearing at 9:15 am. 
Commissioner Andrews asked if closing the road deemed the property to become the 
property of the applicant.  Mr. Koontz responded that it was his understanding that the 
closed road would become the applicant’s property.  Mr. Koontz described the purpose of 
the request was due to the applicant’s wishing to build a home and proposed location for 
the house would be in the “middle of the road.”  
 
Mr. Conner stated that the location was one of the many older subdivisions where 
proposed roads were listed on maps.  Mr. Conner reported that quite a number of those 
roads had been closed and there are additional roads that should also be closed.  Mr. 
Conner reported that adjoining property owners had been notified of the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to grant the road closing as requested.  
Commissioner Belk seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FOR CUP-01-03, HILL FAMILY SUBDIVISION ON MT. 
HOPE CHURCH ROAD: 
 
Chairman Blount stated the public hearing would focus on CUP-01-03, a request from 
Kenneth Hill of 1520 Mt. Hope Church Road.  The applicant requested a family 
subdivision located in the CBI district on Tax Map 417 Parcel 048. 
 
The Clerk swore in those wishing to provide testimony in the case. 
 
Marion Lytle, County Planner, presented the Staff report, explaining that Mr. Hill had 
approached Staff “several weeks ago” requesting to place a manufactured home for his 
child on the proposed site.  Mr. Lytle stated that the site meets all of the criteria for a 
conditional use permit in the CBI district.  Mr. Lytle also noted that if the site were not in 
the CBI district, the request would not have to come before the Board.   
 
Staff recommended approval of the request based on the following Findings of Fact: 
 

1. The proposed singlewide will not materially endanger the public health or 
safety. 

2. The singlewide is a compatible housing type and will not substantially injure 
the value of adjoining property. 

3. The site is not a proposed 85-ED site and is in conformance with county 
plans. 

 3



 
Commissioner Belk inquired if the property owner would be allowed to use the mobile 
home as a rental property if the child moves out.  Mr. Lytle responded that the applicant 
signs an affidavit, which states who will reside in the mobile home.  Mr. Lytle continued 
by explaining if Staff receives a report that the property owner is not using the home for 
the original purpose, the owner would have to bring the home into conformity with the 
County’s standards.   
 
Chairman Blount opened the public hearing at 9:20 am to entertain citizen comment.  
With no citizens wishing to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the public 
hearing at 9:20 am. 
 
Commissioner Belk said she had no problem with the family subdivision “as long as that 
is what it is being used for.”  Commissioner Belk expressed concern that the Board could 
be creating situations that could become issues in the future. 
 
Mr. Lytle said a permit is only issued to the individual listed on the affidavit.  Mr. Lytle 
explained that if a different family member moves in, the family is supposed to come to 
Staff and change the affidavit.  Mr. Lytle informed the Board that Staff issues permits for 
approximately 40-50 family subdivisions per year.  
 
Chairman Blount gave an example for possible revocation of the permit. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to approve the conditional use permit as 
requested, followed by a second from Commissioner Andrews.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
REPORT ON THE I-85 REZONINGS: 
 
Mr. Lytle updated the Board on the Planning Board recommendations for 14 individual 
property owners that had requested zoning other than the zoning proposed by staff.  Mr. 
Lytle pointed out the public hearing was classified as “a large-scale rezoning” and 
highlighted the notice requirements.  Mr. Lytle referred to the map in the handout and 
reviewed the various zoning requests. 
 
Commissioner Andrews made a motion to proceed with the public hearing followed by a 
second from Commissioner Tadlock. 
 
Mr. Lytle suggested holding a public hearing on March 17th and said staff would make 
every effort to notify all property owners subject to a zoning change.  Mr. Lytle said staff 
could be available prior to the hearing to discuss any issues.   
 
Commissioner Tadlock suggested establishing a time prior to the public hearing for a 
workshop and added the suggested time of 4:00 pm until 6:00 pm prior to the public 
hearing. 
 

 4



Chairman Blount requested that Mr. Lytle schedule the workshop for March 17th. 
 
Upon being put to the vote, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
BILLBOARD UPDATE FROM PLANNING: 
 
Mr. Lytle reviewed the county billboard standards adopted on November 19, 2001.  Mr. 
Lytle also reviewed the conditional use standards.  Mr. Lytle reported that Lloyd Pace, 
Codes Enforcement Officer, had been conducting an inventory of signs in the county 
planning jurisdiction. 
 
Mr. Pace distributed a handout that reflected the billboard locations.  Mr. Pace pointed 
out the permits for the double-decker billboards were issued by the Department of 
Transportation in 1988, 1984, 1986, and 1972.   
 
In response to a query from Chairman Blount, Mr. Lytle responded that the double-
decker billboards were permitted prior to the standards being approved by the Board. 
 
Mr. Lytle stated that if the double-decker billboards were destroyed they could be rebuilt 
on the site and on the exact location.  These billboards are “grand-fathered” and  would 
fall under the non-conforming use standards.  Mr. Lytle added that if the location was 
moved 50-feet, the billboards would need to come into conformance with existing 
standards. This statement was in response to a query from Commissioner Belk. 
 
Commissioner Andrews said that he saw several double-decker billboards on new poles 
and asked if they were in Cabarrus County.  Mr. Pace responded that there were several 
double-decker billboards in Cabarrus County before the Rowan County line. 
 
Mr. Lytle added that staff would need to look at the County Ordinance to verify if the 
double-decker billboards were destroyed, that they could be re-built to the same 
configuration.   Commissioner Belk asked if this would be something to look at for the 
“50% rule?”  Mr. Lytle responded that most ordinances to have this rule and staff could 
add these request to their “long” list of items to review. 
 
Commissioner Andrews asked if when the permits are issued, and complied with the sign 
ordinance of 500-feet or 1,000-feet, and another billboard is placed right on top of a 
billboard, does this violate the ruling?  Mr. Lytle responded that single-decker billboards 
in Rowan County could not be approved for double-decker billboards.  Commissioner 
Andrews questioned aerial rights, to which  Mr. Lytle responded that this procedure 
follows NCDOT regulations. 
 
Chairman Blount the Board if they were in agreement to ask staff to consider text 
amendments to zoning with language stating that, if a sign is destroyed or removed for 
any purpose, this must meet current zoning standards. 

 5



Commissioner Belk asked if the language would be destroyed or use the 50% destruction 
rule.  Mr. Lytle responded that staff would survey similar counties and make a call on this 
concern.  Mr. Lytle added that in most cases it is 50%. 
 
Chairman Blount asked staff if billboards were allowed on other roads in Rowan County, 
other that the interstate?   Mr. Lytle responded that signs could be placed up to 300-feet, 
but must come before the Board of Commissioners for a conditional use permit.  Mr. 
Lytle continued by stating that the signs must be 1,000-feet away from a residence and 
other signs and must be on property that is zoned commercial and industrial and have 
buildings on site for this purpose.  Mr. Lytle said that the signs are strictly regulated.   
 
The Board by consensus agreed to have staff return with the text amendments  
 
RELEASE OF FREEZE ON VACANT POSITIONS: 
 
Chairman Blount reviewed with the Board that in March of 2002, the Board approved the 
County Manager’s Plan, which included a 60-day freeze on filling vacant positions, in 
order to ensure that adequate funds would be available to support he county’s operations. 
 
Chairman Blount added that the Rowan County is financially in a good position for the 
remainder of this fiscal year and the County Manager is recommending dropping the 
freeze.  Chairman Blount stated that there are currently seven (7) positions that are 
frozen. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock praised the County Manager and staff for being pro-active in 
addressing a means to address the loss of funding.  Commissioner Tadlock added that 
staff acted appropriately and did a good job. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock made a motion to approve the request to release the freeze on 
vacant positions as requested by the County Manager.  Commissioner Belk seconded the 
motion. 
 
Commissioner Belk thanked staff for keeping the work of the County going. 
 
Commissioner Andrews asked if the State were to hold funding in the next budget year, 
would the County then need to lay-off the people in these positions.  Chairman Blount 
responded “no” and added that a freeze in positions would probably be enacted. 
 
The motion passed unanimously. 
 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS: 
 
The Clerk mentioned that the Board had passed a Resolution in June of 1999, which 
established guidelines for meeting attendance. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock requested a copy of the Resolution for review. 

 6



 
Commissioner Belk suggested contacting faith-based groups in an effort to gain 
volunteers to serve on various county-appointed boards. 
 
The Clerk stated that a letter had been sent approximately one year ago to all churches, 
seeking volunteers for boards. 
 
Commissioner Belk recommended “reaching out” through the Human Relations Council. 
 
In response to correspondence from the Centralina Council of Governments, Chairman 
Blount requested that the Clerk contact Mr. Key and Mr. Talton and inquire about their 
interest in continuing to serve on the Adult Care Home Community Advisory Board. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Chairman Blount opened the Public Comment Period to entertain comments from those 
in attendance.   
 
There being no one that wished to address the Board, Chairman Blount closed the Public 
Comment Period 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Chairman Blount declared that the Board would go into Closed Session to discuss an 
Economic Development issue at 10:00 am.   
 
Chairman brought the Board back into Open Session at 10:25 am and declared that the 
Closed Session would continue on February 5, 2003 at 12:30 pm 
 
ADDITION: UPCOMING CUP ON THE QUARTER MIDGET RACE TRACK: 
 
Chairman Blount cautioned the Board not to get too involved in public comments and 
questions concerning the upcoming conditional use permit hearing on a new location site 
for the Quarter Midget Race Track to be located off of Peach Orchard Road at Summit 
Corporate Center.  Chairman Blount reminded the Board that this hearing is causing 
interest from the community and since this is a “quasi judicial” procedure, the decision 
must be made with an open mind and on sworn testimony based on facts.  The decision is 
to be made on what is heard at the hearing. 
 
Commissioner Tadlock expressed concern about the county being involved in the 
racetrack.  Commissioner Tadlock said that he has received several calls from citizens in 
opposition of the location of the racetrack and he now has reservations since the 
community does not appear to be embracing this project. 
 

 7



 8

Chairman Blount reminded the Board that the conditional use permit hearing is scheduled 
for February 17th and if the Board agrees to the conditions, the CUP must be granted or it 
could go to a court . 
 
The Board discussed the investment that the racetrack would bring to the county, 
particularly through tourism and also the lease options. 
 
Chairman Blount concluded the discussion by reminding the Board that the CUP is a 
“quasi judicial” hearing, based on fact and the Board cannot discuss the hearing. 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further discussions, Chairman Blount recessed the meeting at 11:00 am 
until 12:30 pm on Wednesday, February 5, 2003. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
      Rita K. Foil, CMC 
      Clerk to the Board 
 
 


	 "`�j�j
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE

